
Adopted:  June 9, 2016 – As Written 

 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD 

 
MINUTES 

 
MAY 26, 2016 

 
  
 PAGES 
 
  1  Review and Acceptance of Minutes 

 May 12, 2016 – Adopted as Written 
 
  1  Roger and Jacqueline Garland (File #FR16-04) –  
    Full Site Plan Review (PID 253-8) 

 Continued until June 9, 2016 
 
  2  Richard Leavitt (File #S16-07) – 6-Unit Subdivision  
    (PID 219-104.1, 104.2 & 104.3) 

 Conditionally Approved 
 
  4  Other Business 

 Daniel Robins (PID 297-3) – Class VI Road 
 Andrew and Tess Narducci (PID 219-4) - §123-

4.A.5 (File #NA16-02) 
 CMR Properties, LLC (PID 214-84) - §123-

4.A.5 (File #NA16-03) 
 Whitesides Realty, Inc/Via Roma’s (PID 230-4) - 

§123-4.A.5 (File #NA16-04) 
 Adoption of Trails Plan – Master Plan 
 Alternate to the Planning Board 
 Flat Screen TV for meeting room 
 Roundabout in Conway Village 
 AirBNB 

   



Adopted:  June 9, 2016 – As Written 

CONWAY PLANNING BOARD 
 

MINUTES 
 

MAY 26, 2016 
 
A meeting of the Conway Planning Board was held on Thursday, May 26, 2016 beginning at 
7:00 pm at the Conway Town Office in Center Conway, NH.  Those present were:  Chair, Robert 
Drinkhall; Selectmen’s Representative, Steven Porter; Vice Chair, Steven Hartmann; Secretary, 
Kevin Flanagan; Michael Fougere; Raymond Shakir; Planning Director, Thomas Irving; and 
Recording Secretary, Holly Meserve. 
 
REVIEW AND ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 
 
Mr. Flanagan made a motion, seconded by Mr. Fougere, to approve the Minutes of May 12, 
2016 as written.  Motion unanimously carried. 
 
ROGER AND JACQUELINE GARLAND (FILE #FR16-04) – FULL SITE PLAN 
REVIEW (PID 253-8) 
 
George Fredette of SFC Engineering appeared before the Board.  This is an application to 
construct a fuel depot, an 800 square foot warehouse building and associated infrastructure on 
East Conway Road, Center Conway (PID 253-8).  Mr. Fredette stated there will be 2, 30,000 
gallon underground tanks, a 5,000-gallon diesel fuel tank and three, 15,000-gallon petroleum 
tanks.   
 
Mr. Fredette stated they have not addressed the deficiency list from the Planning Staff; they 
would like to ask the Board to accept the application and then continue to another meeting.  Mr. 
Porter made a motion, seconded by Mr. Flanagan, to accept the application of Roger and 
Jacqueline Garland for a Full Site Plan Review as substantially complete.  Motion 
unanimously carried. 
 
Mr. Drinkhall asked for public comment; John Stevens stated he is concerned about the dust 
from the road and the use of Jake brakes, there is no reason to use them on a flat piece of ground.  
Mr. Irving stated the Town is requiring the applicant to pave the service access to this site; they 
do not have access to Service Road, but he will pass on the concern to the Town Engineer.   
 
Mr. Fredette asked that the application be continued.  Mr. Drinkhall made a motion, seconded 
by Mr. Flanagan, to continue the Full Site Plan Review for Roger and Jacqueline Garland 
until June 9, 2016.  Motion unanimously carried. 
 
Mr. Shakir stated he had a few questions.  Mr. Drinkhall made a motion, seconded by Mr. 
Fougere, to reopen the public hearing for Roger and Jacqueline Garland.  Motion 
unanimously carried.  Mr. Shakir asked if there would be any audible alarms to warn residents 
of the area there is an incident.  Mr. Fredette stated he would look into it.  Mr. Fougere asked 
what is planned for fire suppression.   



Adopted:  June 9, 2016 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – MAY 26, 2016 

PAGE 2 OF 6 

 

Russ Boisvert for Rymes stated the tanks are underground because of the concern with water 
supply, it lessens the danger factor.  Mr. Fougere stated the concern is water supply; the closest is 
White Mountain Oil and that is locked at night.  Mr. Fougere stated they should consider a well 
on site in order to be able to produce your own water.  Mr. Fredette stated he will bring back the 
Team to the next meeting so this can be explained.  Mr. Irving stated the previous application for 
a propane facility had a monitor gun stationed on site and a piping system that went out to the 
public State right-of-way; this was done at the recommendation of the Fire Chief.   
 
Mr.  Flanagan asked if there is a department that makes sure these types of facilities are spaced 
out enough.  Mr. Irving answered the Fire Marshall and a fire safety study is done.  Mr. Fougere 
stated it will be a burden to White Mountain Oil to supply water during a situation they have 
created for themselves.  Mr. Hartmann made a motion, seconded by Mr. Porter, to continue 
the public hearing for Roger and Jacqueline Garland until to June 9, 2016. Motion 
unanimously carried.   
 
RICHARD LEAVITT (FILE #S16-07) – 6-UNIT SUBDIVISION (PID 219-104.1, 104.2 & 
104.3) 
 
Shawn Bergeron of Bergeron Technical Services appeared before the Board.  This is an 
application to merge three lots into one lot of record and create a 6-unit subdivision at 90 
Cranmore Road, North Conway (PID 219-104.1, 104.2 & 104.3).  Mr. Bergeron gave an 
overview of the project.  Mr. Porter made a motion, seconded by Mr. Fougere, to accept the 
application of Richard Leavitt for a Subdivision Review as complete.  Motion unanimously 
carried. 
 
Mr. Drinkhall asked for Board comment; Mr. Porter asked if they are going to share one parcel 
of land.  Mr. Bergeron stated there are exclusive use areas around each unit, but the remaining 
land will be common land.  Mr. Porter asked does the area being built on meet the Town of 
Conway lot size requirement.  Mr. Irving stated this is a unit subdivision; there is one parent 
parcel with building footprints and exclusive use areas for each unit, but these will not be 
individual lots of record.     
 
Mr. Shakir asked if they will have garages.  Mr. Bergeron answered in the negative.  Mr. Shakir 
asked if there would be reserved parking spaces for each unit.  Mr. Bergeron answered in the 
negative and stated there is a shared parking lot.  Mr. Shakir asked if there would be restrictions 
on the number of vehicles allowed.  Mr. Bergeron answered in the negative.     
 
Mr. Drinkhall asked for public comment; David Carey asked the size of each dwelling unit.  Mr. 
Bergeron answered 30’ x 24’.  Mr. Carey asked if they will be two-stories.  Mr. Bergeron stated 
maybe a loft.  Mr. Carey stated if they have friends visit, don’t you think there will be a parking 
problem.  Mr. Bergeron stated they meet the Town of Conway parking standards; he thinks this 
will be sufficient for what is going on.  Mr. Carey asked if this meets the Town Zoning 
requirements.  Mr. Bergeron answered in the affirmative.     
 



Adopted:  June 9, 2016 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – MAY 26, 2016 

PAGE 3 OF 6 

 

Mr. Hartmann asked if the applicant considered driveways off of Skimobile.  Mr. Bergeron 
answered in the affirmative, but stated the topography is tough.  Mr. Porter asked if these are 
going to be privately owned or rental properties; think we have a problem brewing with parking.  
Mr. Porter stated he has reservations with this site is accessed.  Mr. Bergeron stated the original 
design did not have the loop driveway, but the North Conway Fire Chief would not support a 
single access.   
 
Mr. Bergeron stated in regard to how the units will be occupied he would refer to the owner, 
Richard Leavitt.  Mr. Leavitt stated he intends to keep these and use them for short term rentals; 
he thinks the size of the units will limit the number of people who occupy them.  Mr. Leavitt 
stated there will be two- and three-bedroom units; at most it will be a family with kids or two 
couples, they are not designed for large groups.   
 
Mr. Bergeron stated they are 720 square feet; they are not big structures.  Mr. Bergeron stated 
putting large groups in any of these structures is not going to happen.  Mr. Carey stated if they 
are short term rentals and Mount Cranmore is right there, he has a concern with the occupancy.   
 
Mr. Carey stated this is a sleek way to turn three single-family lots into a hotel with cottages.  
Mr. Carey stated they do pile them in and concerned with what will happen down the road.  Mr. 
Flanagan stated he doesn’t think the Town has anything in place to regulate this type of activity 
even though it does have an impact on the neighborhood.   
 
Mr. Porter stated the Board of Selectmen (BOS) has reviewed this type of activity and this meets 
all the requirements, but personally have a problem with this as it could create a potential 
problem down the road.  Mr. Drinkhall asked if Chief Preece addressed overflow parking.  Mr. 
Bergeron stated he has approved this plan as designed.   
 
Mr. Bergeron stated he appreciates and respects everyone’s concern, but developing the worst 
possibility of what could happen.  Mr. Bergeron stated the structures are small and meet the 
requirements of the Town of Conway; have to take it at face value that the property owner is 
going to use the property as he says he intends to. 
 
Mr. Shakir stated he doesn’t have a concern with access or noise, but we all know that these units 
are not going to be used as a single-family unit.  Mr. Shakir stated we know that they are going 
to pack people in there and he thinks the parking situation is underutilized and should actually be 
doubled.  Mr. Bergeron stated the site fully meet the requirements; the Town has a tendency to 
create more parking then what is necessary.   
 
Mr. Hartmann asked Mr. Irving when something like this becomes commercial.  Mr. Irving 
stated when they are no longer single-family homes.  Mr. Irving stated we don’t have the 
authority to regulate length of tenure; at this point in time, the BOS has indicated they are not 
ready to regulate length of tenure for single-family structures.   
 
 
 



Adopted:  June 9, 2016 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – MAY 26, 2016 

PAGE 4 OF 6 

 

Mr. Bergeron read the waiver requests for §131-3; §131-37.1.A; and §131-67.C.8.h.  Mr. 
Hartmann made a motion, seconded by Mr. Shakir, to grant the waiver for §131-3; §131-
37.1.A; and §131-67.C.8.h.  Motion carried with Mr. Flanagan, Mr. Shakir, Mr. Fougere 
and Mr. Drinkhall voting in the affirmative and Mr. Hartmann and Mr. Porter voting in 
the negative.   
 
Mr. Hartmann made a motion, seconded by Mr. Flanagan, to sign the lot merger to merge 
PID 219-104.1, 104.2 & 104.3 into one lot of record and to make the recording of the lot 
merger subsequent to the condition of approval.  Motion unanimously carried.   
 
Mr. Porter made a motion, seconded by Mr. Fougere, to conditionally approve the 
subdivision for Richard Leavitt conditionally upon Town Engineer Approval; submitting 
four copies of revised plan sets with original signatures; submitting a Mylar for recording; 
a performance guarantee for all site improvements; when the conditions have been met, the 
plans can be signed out-of-session; and this conditional approval will expire on August 25, 
2016.  Motion carried with Mr. Porter voting in the negative.   
 
Mr. Carey stated that the Planning Board and the BOS need to get together and address this 
situation or we will end up with motels in people’s back yards; this is a real problem.   
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Daniel Robins (PID 297-3) – Class VI Road: This is a request to seek a building permit 
pursuant to RSA 674:41 on a Class VI Road.  Paul King appeared before the Board representing 
Phil Halle, who was in attendance, of Summit Builders who is representing the land owner, 
Daniel Robins. Mr. King submitted information to the Board (attached).   
 
Mr. King stated Leavitt Road Extension is a Class VI road; and pursuant to RSA 674:41 the BOS 
can authorize the issuance of a Building Permit on a Class VI road, but they must receive a 
review and comments from the Planning Board.   Mr. King stated they are seeking a positive 
review from the Planning Board to forward to the BOS.  Mr. Irving stated staff has no issues or 
concerns with this request. 
 
Mr. Drinkhall asked for Board comment; Mr. Hartmann asked for an explanation of what this 
Board is supposed to do with this request.  Mr. Irving stated Class VI roads are Town roads that 
are not built to Town standards and are not maintained.  Mr. Irving stated if you own a lot on a 
Class VI road that you wish to access, the Town does not want to be responsible to maintain 
these roads nor do they want to create any liability, so RSA 674:41 give the BOS the authority to 
issue a building permit on the Class VI road if the owner records a document at the Registry of 
Deeds that the Town is not responsible.   
 
Mr. Drinkhall asked for public comment; there was none.  Mr. Porter made a motion, 
seconded by Mr. Shakir, to indicate to the Board of Selectmen if they are of the opinion to 
issue a building permit they should.  Motion unanimously carried.   
 



Adopted:  June 9, 2016 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – MAY 26, 2016 

PAGE 5 OF 6 

 

Andrew and Tessa Narducci (PID 219-4) - §123-4.A.5 (File #NA16-02):  This is a request to 
allow the construction of a building overhang at 112 Mechanic Street, North Conway.  Mr. 
Irving stated the property owner would like to construct an awning overhang along the front of 
the building; the entire front of the lot is pavement.   
 
Mr. Porter made a motion, seconded by Mr. Flanagan, that the Planning Board 
determined that based on the provisions of §123-4. A. 5., regarding applicability, that the 
construction of a building overhang is not subject to a Minor or Full Site Plan Review 
because it has been demonstrated that the change of use and/or physical changes to the site 
are insignificant relative to the existing development.  Motion unanimously carried.  
 
CMR Properties, LLC (PID 214-84) - §123-4.A.5 (File #NA16-03):  Glen Harmon, Director 
of Operations at Cranmore Mountain, appeared before the Board.  This is a request to expand an 
existing deck at 239 Skimobile Road, North Conway.  Mr. Irving stated this is the deck on the 
back of Zip’s Pub.  Mr. Harmon stated it is an 850 square foot addition.  
 
Mr. Drinkhall asked for Board comment; Mr. Hartmann asked if there is a major plan for this 
site.  Mr. Harmon answered in the affirmative and stated that this just came about during their 
normal maintenance of the site.   
 
Mr. Shakir made a motion, seconded by Mr. Hartmann, that the Planning Board 
determined that based on the provisions of §123-4. A. 5., regarding applicability, that the 
expansion of an existing deck is not subject to a Minor or Full Site Plan Review because it 
has been demonstrated that the change of use and/or physical changes to the site are 
insignificant relative to the existing development.  Motion unanimously carried. 
 
Whitesides Realty, Inc/Via Roma’s (PID 230-4) - §123-4.A.5 (File #NA16-04):  Mohd of Via 
Roma’s appeared before the Board.  This is a request to allow outdoor seating at 2076 White 
Mountain Highway, North Conway.  Mr. Irving stated that they would like to move existing 
approved seats outside in front of the restaurant.  Mr. Irving stated they are proposing to block 
each end with concrete barriers and planters.  Mr. Irving stated they will have up to 10 seats and 
five tables.     
 
Mr. Hartmann asked if the other tenants in the building have approved this.  Mr. Irving stated 
they will have to obtain approval from the property owner and any conflicts will have to be 
addressed by the property.  Mr. Fougere was concerned with protection from the road.  Mr. 
Irving stated there is a sidewalk and a telephone pole.  Mr. Hartmann asked if the barriers are 
seasonal.  Mohd answered just summer time.   
 
Mr. Drinkhall made a motion, seconded by Mr. Shakir, that the Planning Board 
determined that based on the provisions of §123-4. A. 5., regarding applicability, that 
outdoor seating is not subject to a Minor or Full Site Plan Review because it has been 
demonstrated that the change of use and/or physical changes to the site are insignificant 
relative to the existing development.  Motion unanimously carried.   
 



Adopted:  June 9, 2016 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – MAY 26, 2016 

PAGE 6 OF 6 

 

Adoption of Trails Plan - Master Plan:  Mr. Porter made a motion, seconded by Mr. 
Shakir, to amend the Conway Master Plan to include the Trails Plan.  Motion unanimously 
carried.     
 
Alternate to the Planning Board:  Mr. Irving stated that Martha Tobin has expressed interest in 
being an alternate Planning Board member.  Mr. Porter made a motion, seconded by Mr. 
Drinkhall, to appoint Martha Tobin as an alternate for one-year [2017].  Motion 
unanimously carried. 
 
Flat Screen TV for meeting room:  Mr. Porter stated that he submitted the Planning Board’s 
request at the last work session regarding the feasibility of a television for the meeting room and 
the Town is looking into it.  Mr. Flanagan submitted information (attached) regarding a TV to 
the Board.    
 
Roundabout in Conway Village:  Mr. Shakir stated he has read the articles in the Conway 
Daily Sun that there are major obstacles with Fairpoint, but he would suggest that the Town and 
State public improvement requirements trump any utility company.  Mr. Shakir stated their 
Franchise fee allows them a position in the roadway, but not necessarily where.  Mr. Shakir 
stated it is their responsibility to provide an order and move it at their expense; don’t see why 
this has to be such a road block to a public improvement proposal that is in the top 3 things that 
this Town needs.  Mr. Shakir stated that he would like to request that the Administration have 
them move the utility.   
 
AirBNB:  Tom Eastman of the Conway Daily Sun asked how Mr. Irving sees it proceeding, will 
it be complaint driven.  Mr. Irving stated he is monitoring and compiling any complaints that are 
received and the BOS will be kept informed of the complaints.  Mr. Irving stated it is the role of 
the BOS to take action on these.  Mr. Irving stated there is currently legislation proposed to allow 
municipalities to regulate this type of activity; the BOS wanted to wait to see how that went.   
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:26 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Holly L. Meserve 
Recording Secretary 










































